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ACHS SUMMARY FORM LT
Name: Aix-La-Chapelle

Planning Area/Site Number: 17/6 3. M=NCPPC Atlas Reference: §a§85

Address: Route 28, Reallsville

Classification Summary

Category building Previous Survey Recording__ f=liCPPC
pre?shlp . nrlvats Title and Date: 1976 Inventory of
Public Acquisition__ /A 3 : e
Status occunTed Historical Sites
Accessible no Federal State x County_x Local
Present use agriculture, nrivate residence

Date: ¢, 1810 7. Original Owner: ¥William Brewer

Apparent Condition

a. _good b, altered e, - original site

Description: This house was built using Palladian symmetry. The central
five bay, two-and-a-half story white painted brick structure faces west.

To the north and south are one bay, two story, white painted brick
dependencies., These devendencies are connected to the central structure

by three bay, two story clapboarded frame wings. The central structure has
nine-over-six double-hung windows at the first level, west elevation. There
are six-over-six double-hung windows elsewhere., On the west elevation of
central section there are three hinped six-over-six double-hung dormer
windows., There are five gable roofs, all are covered by wooden shingles.

Significance: Aix-La-Chapelle is a brick manor house significant for its
assoc1at10ns for 130 vears with the Brewer family.

The original 1 792 acre tract was first patented in 1749 to Daniel
Carroll., Part of the nroperty was sold in 1808 to Joseph Newton Chiswell
(builder of Chiswell's Inheritance). Chiswell sold 156 3/4 acres to William
Brewer in 1809 that coincides almost exactly with the present day farm. It
is believed that Brewer built the original cube-shaped federal style, red
brick house soon after 1809,

Brewer (1777-1861) was a successful doctor., Fe married fary Chiswell
and was related by marriage to the Whites, Chiswells,Griffiths, and other
nrominent upper lMontgomerr County families. His son George inherited the
farm and operated it until his death in June 1908, George's son, William G.,
received the farm, and kept it in the Erewer family until 1937 when it was
sold to David and Arnita Shober., They remodeled the house before selling
it in 1941, The land was divided in 1959. The present owners purchased
Aix-La-Chapelle in 196k,

Candy Reed
Researcher and date researched: Pavid Presteman-9/79 Arch, Description
Compniler: Gail Rothrock 13, Date Compiled: 10/79 14, Designation
Approval

15, Acreage: 158,71 acres
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DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED —_UNALTERED ZORIGINAL SITE
X_GOOD __RUINS XALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Aix-La=-Chapelle was bullt with Palladian symmetry: a central five
bay two-and-a-half story white painted brick section faces west., It is
flanked on the north and south by one bay two-and-a-half story white painted
brick denendencies which are connected to the main house by three bay,
two story frame wings. The west (front) elevation has a total of 13 bays.

Three semicircular brick stens lead to the west (front) wooden
paneled door. This door is surmounted by a semicircular fanlight and is
flanked by applied fluted pilasters. There are north and south doors on
the north and south denendency wings.

There are six-over-nine double-hung windows at the first level of the
west elevation, center section. Ilsewhere there are six-over-six double
hung windows. Windows in the center and dependency wings are set into
flat arches, There are three hinvned six-over-six double hung dormer
windows on the west elevation, center section.

There are five distinctive gable roofss; all have wooden shingle
covering, The center section and the north and south dependencies have
corbelled cornice lines., The center section has interior north and south
chimners. The north and south devendencies have north and south exterior
end chimneys., '

West of the house is a one storv brick outbhuilding., It has an
interior end chimney at the west gable end., The south elevation has a
central doorway flanked by nine-over-six double hung windows.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLUOGY-PREHISTORIC __.COMMUNITY PLANNING —_LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE __RELIGION
—1400-1499 —_ARCHEOLOGY-HISTOR!IC __CONSERVATION __LAW __SCIENCE
—1500-1599 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS — LITERATURE —.SCULPTURE
—1600-1699 __ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY __SOCIALZHUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 __ART __ENGINEERING __MusSIC —_THEATER
_X1800-1899 . COMMERCE __EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
_X900- —COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT j_{OTHER {SPECIFY)
__INVENTION . Local History
SPECIFIC DATES c. 1810 BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Aix-La-Chavnelle is a brick manor house significant for its associa-
tion for 130 vears with the Brewer family.

Aix-La-Chanelle was originally natented to Daniel Carroll in 1749 for
1,792 acres.l This huge tract runs from present Maryland Route 28 on the
north to below !faryland Route 107 on the south, and generally borders on
the east end of Poolesville,

The survevors who platted the natent evidently misplaced the location
of two "elder survevs" known as "Flint's Grove" and "The Beginning". On
the drawving enclosed, the outermost boundaries renresent what Carroll
*hought he got. What he actually got, after accounting for the "Flint's
Jrove" and "The Beginning" overlaps, 1s outlined in red and turquoise.

The 1783 Tax assessment for Sugarland Fundred reports '"one framed
dwelling" and a "few other log houses too tedious to mention" on Aix-La-
Chapelle., The owners are listed as Charles Carroll heirs,

In December of 1808, Charles Carroll of "Washington City" sold most
of Aix-La-Chapelle (1,24% 3/% acres) to John Poole, Jr. and Joseph Newtgn
Chiswell (builder of Chiswell's Inheritance) for 56 shillings per acre.
Poole and Chiswell immediately divided the property between themselves,
with Poole taking the lower 852% acres. '

Carroll sold the balance of his estate in 1808 or 1809 to Lawrence
O'Nealﬁ, a transaction that was confirmed by an 1815 deed to O'Neale's
heirs.

After the division, Chiswell proceeded to sell off his northern
portion of Aix-La-Chapeile in a series of transactions, most dated
April 1, 1809, The one that concerns the s?bject property is a sale of
156 3/% acres to William Brewer for $1,24k, Less a strip of land north
of Poute 28 and a triangular piece marked (2) on the enclosed plat, and
plus the field at the corner of Jerusalem Road and Route 28, BErewer's
narcel coincides exactly with the present day farm. It is believed that
Brewer built the original cube-shaped, federal style, red brick house
soon after 1809,

William Brewer (1777-1861) was a doctor, apparently very successful.
He married Yary Chiswell and was related by marriage to the VWhites,
Chiswells, Griffiths, and other prominent upper l!ontgomery County families.
At his death in 1861 he owned a 276-acre farm called "My Voodstock Farm",

.orth of Route 28, in addition to Aix-La-Chapelle which he referred to
"my home farm". IHis personal estate was valued at over $13,000, angd was
augnented by the collection of over $10,000 in accounts receivable.,

(Continued on Attachment Sheet A)
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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EJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 158 71 acres

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY -
EB1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE Candy Reed
David Presteman Architectural Description
ORGANIZATION DATE
Sugarloaf Regional Trails September 19279
STREET & NUMBER TELEPHONE
Box 87 _926-4510
CITY OR TOWN STATE
Dickerson Yaryland 20753

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-
ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust
The Shaw House; 21 State Circle
Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438
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Aix-La-Chanelle

Prever's son Ceorge Brewer Sr, (1822-1908) inherited the farm.
Although he rented it to a tenant farmer for a while, he operated
Aix-La=Chanelle for mgst of the period until his death in June 1906.
William ¢, Brewer (1850-1944) received the farm from his father,
teeping it in the Brewer family until 1937. In 1220 the family
gravevard was abandoned by the Brewers and all bodies were noved to
Yonocacy Cemetery. Tollowing a court-ordered/ settlement, 310 acres
were sold by the_Brewer heilrs to David and Arnita Shober of
‘'ashington, D.C.

The Shobers remodelled the house, renlacing the one-and-a-half
story iritchen wing on the south side of the house with an addition,
and adding a duplicate wing on the other end to make the entire
mansion 100' long and two stories high throusghout., The Chobers sold
in 1941 to Bertram and liargaret Randles,9 who kent the house for 12
vears, The land was divided in 1959, resulting in the present acreage.lo

The current owners purchased Aix-La-Chanelle in 1964,

TO0THNOTES::

1. Certificate, BY & %S #1/607; Patent, 3Y & 3¢ #2/403, Eall of
Records, Annapolis, 'd.

2. Land Records of “ontgomery County, ¥d., 0/245 (December 15, 1808),

3. Ibid., 0/247 (April 1, 1809),

4, Ibid,, £19/186 (April 25, 1815),

5, Ibid., 0/281 (April 1, 1809).

6. fontgomery County Orphan's Court Fecords, /illiam 3rewver will - dated
October 18, 1854 and probated Cctober 22, 1861).

7. Yontgomery County Equity Records, Zquity #8007 (1937).

8. Land Records, op. cit., 668/175 (May 13, 1937).

9, Ibid., 863/44E (llovember 29, 1941),

10. Ibid., 2671/48 (Noverber 2, 1959 (Francis Zinn to Florence Ewald).
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2 DESCRIFTION

second.

It sits on a stone

chimneys at either end of the main block.
facade is five bays with a central doorway.

dormers on the roof; they have hipped roofs.

It has flush gable chimney on the west end.

foundation.

the foundation leading to the forebay;

o {Theck Urnie)
T} Exceilent %}}( Good {3 Fair (7] Cerecicrotad [ Ruins i} -Urexpored
CONDITION (\’:‘;e?;—O:c) (Chevk Dnre)
ﬁ Alterad T} Unclrered ] Moved 5"‘1 Original Sits
DESCRIiBE THE PRESENT 4 40 ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL AFPEARARNCE

The house is a two story, brick structure with

The main (west)
There are three

The windows

are 6/9 double hung sash on the first floor and 6/6 on the
The house is laid up in Liverpool bond; the windows
have jack arches on stretcher tall.

West of the house is a one story, brick outbuilding.

The south

facade has a central doorway flanked by 9/6 double hung sash.
The bankbarn is framed with bcard and batten siding.

There is a doorway through

the relieving erch is

semi-circular with shaped vonissoir blocks.

33
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[J Communiccotions O Military ) Theoter

[ Conservaticn [ Music {0 Tronsportation
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Aix La Chapelle

('ounty about one mile sonthwest of Bealls-

ville, four miles northwest of Dawsonville,
and abont thirty miles from the White House, a
large, handsome white Clolonial brick manor
house with symmetrical wings attracts the at-
tention of the passer-by. Standing about one
hundred yards back from white brick entrance
pillars, it faces west, its left-hand wing toward
the highway.

Il-\' THE northwestern section of Montgomery

DR, WILLIAM BREWER
REMODELED 1938 BY DAVID A, SHOBER

N2 D3
BRICK

The land was purchased by an eminent mem-
ber of the Brewer family just after 1800, and
the lovely old brick house was started in 1812
with bricks made on the farm. It was delayed
by the War, and not finished until 1820, The
plantation for about a hundred and twenty
years was owned, and occupied by members of
that prominent Montgomery County family.

Dr. William Brewer was born in Anne Arun-
del Connty in 1777. A man of intellect, he was
graduated with an M.D. degree from the Uni-
versity of Pennsylvania Medical School at the
age of twenty, and for a time was employed on
the staff of the hospital there. He was a stu-
dent while the famous Dr. Benjamin Rush was
at the head of that famed Institution. (It will
be recalled that Dr. Rush was not only a signer
of the Declaration of Independence but of the

90

3

United States C'onstitution as well.) In 1500
Dr. Brewer returned to his native State, and
on February 5 of that year married Mary R.
Chiswell, a union that was blessed with fifteen
childrenr, He hecame the owner of a large
amount of land in Montgomery County. Among
lis local purchases was: “‘one-quarter part of a
tract known as Fortune,”’ which was convevad
hy deed to him dated December, 1802, hy Rob-
ert Peter. In another deed, exeented by Joseph
Newton Chiswell in August, 1803, Dr. Brower
acquired : “‘one-quarter of the same tract known
as Fortune.”” Part of (thiswell’s Delight is also
included in the farm. These conveyvances are be-
lieved to be among those making up the home
plantation which through the generations con-
tained about 300 acres of lamd. Dr. William
Brewer died in 1861, and his wife Mary passed
away in 1867, and they are buried side by side
in old Monocacy C'emetery. Ilis will, probated
October 22, 1861, shows that he was very pros-
perous. He advanced o each of his children the
following amount in cash: To John, James, and
Nicholas, $4,000 each. To Mary M., $5,000, and
to the three children of FEleanor Brewer Bureh
(deceased) $6,162. To his widow he left his
horse and carriage, the use of the home during
ler lifetime, and to his son, George, he left the
option of taking the Woodstock farm of 276
acres, at twenty dollars per acre, or the liome
farm of 310 acres, at thirty dollars per acre,
(ieorge to pay the difference into the estate if
he took Aix La Chapelle. He took the latter.
“ Any notes due the estate from the ehildren are
to be deducted from the sums they shall re-
ceive, and all slaves unable to labor are to he
jointly supported by the heirs,”” the will con-
tinued. Many bequests of personal articles, his
watch, jewelry, wearing apparel, ete,, were he-
queathed in a codicil. A number of slaves were
donated by name to the several heirs.

Dr. Nicholas Brewer, a son of Dr. William,
attained distinetion in Montgomery County,
He took up the practice of his elderly father
and carried it on with much success for many
vears, He lived at the fime on an adjoining
farm. He was in the Maryvland State Senate in
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868 and 1870, again in 1874 to 1876, and was a
member of the State (‘onstitutional (‘onvention
in 1867,

George Brewer, Sr., born February, 1822, as
has already been noted, inherited the Aix La
Chapelle homestead from his father. It seems
that be rented the farm to a tenant for a term
from 1368 to 1875 after which he operated the
plantation until his death in June, 1908, He
married Althea Young, a daughter of Samuel
Young of Poolesville, in March, 1849,

A son of this union, William G. Brewer, born
in January, 1830 (the homestead descended {o
him upon the death of his father), remained a
farmer living at Aix La Chapelle. In May,
1872, he married Ida White, a daughter ot Ma-
Jor BoS. White, (William (3. died in Deceember
1944 and was buried at Monocacy.) A son,
George W, Brewer 11, married Betty Williams
in May, 1907, and they lived at the old homestead
for nearly forty years. (lle died November 4,
1950,

Lillian Brewer Byrd, daughter of Willinm (.,
and Ida White Brewer, marrvied Joseph D. Byrd
in February, 1917, and today they live in the
lovely old home which he acquived from his
father’s estate. (Scee Locust Grove 111).

Althea Brewer, another daughter of William
(1. and Ida White Brewer, married Harvey J.
White at Aix La Chapelle in 1908, and for many
vears lived at Stoney (astle until they turned
it over to Dr. Byron Dyson White, a son of M.
White by a former marriage. Harvey White was
active in County polities for vears, was in the
House of Delegates of Marviand, and was a
County Commissioner. e died in Mareh, 1930,
at the age of. eighty vears, and the farm on
which they lived across the Edwards 1Yerry
Road from Stoney (‘astle was sold in the sum-
nier of 1950,

In 1937 Aix La Chapelle, whieh then contained
310 acres of land, was sold by the heirs of Wil-

liam G. Brewer to David A. Shober of Wash-
ington. The picturesque old brick manor house
was comipletely transformed into a commodious
and claborate country home. The ancient kiteh-
en wing, a storv-and-a-half building with slave
quarters on the sccond floor, was removed, and
a new addition constructed with *‘curtain strue-
ture’’ conneecting it with the main house. This
made the whole mansion one hundred feet long,
and two stories high throughout. It is reliably
stated that more than $50,000 was spent on this
work,

The Shobers did not enjoy their new home
for morve than three years, It was sold in 1940
to Mr. B. W, Randles.

The eriginai homse at Aix La Chapelle had a
center hall from the front door to a door in the
rear. A stairway, with a delicate handrail and
newels, winds trom the rear to a landing hali-
wayv up, where it turns 180 degrees to continue
{o the second Hoor. There are two large rooms
on cach side of the hall, each having a fiveplace
with line mantels typical of the period.

On the second floor of the old house are two
large rooms on cach side of the hall over the
corresponding rooms on the first Hoor. cach
with a fireplace and handsome mantels of fine
woodwork. The attractive and commodious
rooms in the new structure include kitehen,
laundry, servants’ room and bath in the first
floor right-hand wing, and two bedrooms, living
room and two baths on the second floor. In the
new left-hand wing there 1= a billiard room and a
library on the first floor and a living room and
two baths on the second floor. Mr. B. W. Randles
sold this estate, which he bought in 1940, from
Mr. Shober, to Mr. I"rancis Ginn in 1954, The
owner in 1961 is Mrs. Florvence R. Kwald, a
widow who has a married son who is farming
the 109 acres, planning to start a dairy Iater on.
She bought the estate in 1959, from Mr. Ginn.

“Let the old. old houses ther secerers keep,
Leave then alone in their quiet <leep.

They are hike old folk who nod by the fire.
Glad with their dreams< of youth and desive.”

Crareks H. Towxe
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